
1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Cayce 

Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 6, 2025 

6:00 p.m. – Cayce City Hall – 1800 12th Street 
www.caycesc.gov 

 
To Access Council Meeting Livestream, click 

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams 
 
 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

A. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

B. Approval of Minutes 
  April 1, 2025, Budget Work Session 
  April 1, 2025, Regular Council Meeting 
  April 16, 2025, Regular Council Meeting, Budget Work Session  
 
II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda 
    
III.         Ordinances and Resolutions  
 

A. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-04 Amending the Code of 
             Ordinances for the City of Cayce by Adding Section 2-97 to Provide for Adoption 
  of Proclamations and Ceremonial Resolutions – First Reading 
    

B. Consideration and Approval of Resolution to Declare May 4-10, 2025, as   
  Professional Municipal Clerks Week in South Carolina 
 

C. Consideration and Approval of Resolution Approving and Consenting to the 
  Inclusion of Certain Property in a Joint County Industrial Park Within the City of 
  Cayce, South Carolina with Continuing Conditions; and Other Matters Related  
  Thereto  
   
IV.  Items for Discussion and Possible Approval   
 

A. Discussion and Approval of Purchase of Utilities Equipment Requests          

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager      Deputy City  Manager 
          Tim James Phil Carter Jim Crosland       

             Hunter Sox 
            Byron Thomas 

Mike Conley 

Assistant City Manager 
Wesley Crosby   

http://www.caycesc.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams


V. Committee Matters 
 

A.      Approval to Enter the Following Committee Approved Minutes Into the City’s   
Record 
Museum Commission – March 5, 2025 
 

B.      Appointments and Reappointments 
     Accommodations Tax Committee – One (1) Position  
     Beautification Foundation – Four (4) Positions 
     Events Committee – One (1) Position 
     Museum Commission – One (1) Position    

   
VI. City Manager’s Report 
 

 VII. Council Comments 
 

  VIII. Executive Session 
 

A.        Discussion of Lexington County economic development projects relating to the 
proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services encouraging location 
or expansion of industries or other businesses within the City 

 
B.        Receipt of legal advice relating to claims and potential claims by and against the 

City and other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege 
i. Zoning appeal litigation (1028 Michaelmas Avenue) 

 
C. Receipt of legal advice and discussion of proposed contractual arrangements 

relating to: 
i. Spencer Place – Request for Letter of Support 

 
D. Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed donation of real property (Tax 

Map No. 004652-08-012). 
 

NOTE: Items discussed in Executive Session may result in action by City Council 
upon its return to general session 

 
 IX. Possible Action by Council in follow up to Executive Session  
 

A. Ratification of Prior Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of Real Property by 
Donation of Approximately .50 Acres Consisting of Tax Map No. 004652-08-012 

 
X. Reconvene 
 
XI.   Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 

 

SPECIAL NOTE:  Upon request, the City of Cayce will provide this document in 
whatever form necessary for the physically challenged or impaired. 



ITEM I. B. 





















ITEM I. B. 















ITEM I. B. 





















Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Jim Crosland, City Manager 

Date: May 6, 2025 

Subject: Discussion and Approval to Adopt Proclamations and Ceremonial Resolutions 

Issue 

Council approval is needed to amend the City Code of Ordinances by adding Section 2-997 to Provide for 
adoption of Proclamations and Ceremonial Resolutions.    

Discussion 

Council is often asked to recognize a group, business or individual.  The City currently does not have a policy 
for Proclamations and Resolutions.  By adopting a policy Council may formally and publicly honor events, 
achievements, individuals, entities, groups and causes of interest and importance to the City.     

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council give First Reading to Ordinance 2025-04 that adds Section 2-997 to Provide for 
adoption of Proclamations and Ceremonial Resolutions.    

ITEM III. A. 



1 

WHEREAS, the residents, civic groups, businesses, and other constituents and 
community participants in the City of Cayce often have reason to celebrate notable 
achievements and milestones; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Cayce finds that it is desirable and in 
furtherance of the general welfare of the City that Council, from time to time, formally and 
publicly honor, recognize, and commemorate events, achievements, individuals, entities, 
groups, and causes of interest and importance to the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the power vested in the Council of the City of Cayce by 
virtue of Sections 5-7-30 and 5-7-250(b), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended; and to promote and preserve the general welfare of the City; 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Cayce, in Council, duly 
assembled, as follows: 

Section 1.  That the Code of Ordinances, City of Cayce, South Carolina, is hereby amended 
by adding a section, to be numbered 2-97 and codified within Chapter 2, Article II, Division 
4 (Ordinances and Resolutions) of the Code, which section shall read as follows: 

Sec. 2-97. – Proclamations and Ceremonial Resolutions 

A proposed proclamation, ceremonial resolution, or ceremonial letter, honoring, 
recognizing, or commemorating some event, achievement, individual, entity, group, 
or cause of interest or importance to the city, shall be placed on the agenda for a 
regular or special meeting of city council upon timely advance written request of the 
mayor or two members of council to the city manager. 

Section 2.   Should any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of this Ordinance 
be rendered or declared invalid by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, 
sentences, or words of this Ordinance as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3.   That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA       ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

ORDINANCE 2025-04 

AMENDING THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF 
CAYCE BY ADDING SECTION 2-97 
TO PROVIDE FOR ADOPTION 
OF PROCLAMATIONS AND 
CEREMONIAL RESOLUTIONS

ITEM III. A. 



 2  

  
DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2025. 

 
 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
Attest: 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         William C. Dillard, Jr., City Attorney 



1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

 
 

Resolution to Declare May 4 – 10, 2025, as “Professional Municipal Clerks Week in South 
Carolina” to Recognize and Honor the Valuable Contributions that Municipal Clerks Make to 

Cities and Towns in South Carolina 

Whereas, the position of municipal clerk is the only municipal staff role that is required by state 
law, regardless of a municipality’s size or form of government; and  

Whereas, all 271 cities and towns in the state are required to have a municipal clerk; and 

Whereas, Mendy Corder plays a critical and varied role to support the mayor, city council and city 
staff; and  

Whereas, municipal clerks’ responsibilities under state law include giving notice of meetings to 
council members and the public, keeping minutes of its proceedings, and performing other duties; 
and  

Whereas, regardless of city size, municipal clerks have seen their roles and responsibilities expand 
with changing times; and  

Whereas, with advancements in software and hardware, municipal clerks have become increasingly 
adept/skilled at using technology to prepare materials for meeting agenda packets, to record meeting 
minutes and to manage public records; and  

Whereas, municipal clerks get their professional training from the South Carolina Municipal 
Finance Officers, Clerks and Treasurers Association, an affiliate organization of the Municipal 
Association of South Carolina;   

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the City of Cayce declares May 4 – 10, 
2025, as “Professional Municipal Clerks Weeks in Cayce to recognize and honor the valuable 
contributions that Mendy Corder makes to our city.  

ADOPTED this 6th day of May, 2025. 

________________________________ 
Elise Partin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager      Deputy City  Manager 
          Tim James Phil Carter Jim Crosland   

             Hunter Sox 
    Byron Thomas

Mike Conley 

Assistant City Manager 
Wesley Crosby  

ITEM III. B. 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: Jim Crosland, City Manager 

Date: May 6, 2025  

Subject: Consenting to the Inclusion of Lexington County Tax Map Numbers: 006899-01-027, 
006899-01-029, and 006899-01-030 located within the City of Cayce into the Lexington 
County Multi-County Industrial Park 

Issue 

Council approval is needed for a Resolution consenting to the inclusion of Lexington County Tax Map 
Numbers: 006899-01-027, 006899-01-029, and 006899-01-030 located within the City of Cayce into the 
Lexington County Multi-County Industrial Park. 

Discussion 

Techno-Bloc Corp. has proposed the construction of a new manufacturing facility located within the County 
and the City (as recently partially annexed), such property identified as Lexington County Tax Map 
Numbers: 006899-01-027, 006899-01-029 and 006899-01-030. The reference tax map numbers are 
physically located along Dixiana Road south of Interstate 77. The parcels total approximately 97 acres.  

Lexington County is authorized pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South Carolina 
1895, as amended, and Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended to enter 
into agreements with other counties within the State for the purpose of creating joint county industrial and 
business parks. Pursuant to Section 4-1-170(C) of the MCIP Law, if any Park encompasses all or a portion of 
a municipality, the counties must obtain the consent of the municipality prior to the creation of the park. 

Additionally, the City’s share of the net FILOT revenues shall be calculated in the manner set forth at Section 
12-44-80(A) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, as if the Project were not located in
a park.

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the Resolution consenting to the inclusion of Lexington County Tax 
Map Numbers: 006899-01-027, 006899-01-029, and 006899-01-030 into the Multi-County Industrial 
Park within the City of Cayce.    

ITEM III. C. 



ITEM III. C. 







Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council  

From: James Crosland, City Manager 

Date: May 6, 2025 

Subject: Purchase of Utilities Equipment Requests 

Issue 
Council approval is needed to sole-source the purchase of water and sewer equipment for Utilities Field 
Operations. 

Background 
Sewer Jetter Machine 
Utilities Field Operations owns and operates two sewer jetter machines that are used on a daily basis for 
cleaning lines and addressing sewer blockages that occur within the system.  One unit has failed.  It is 
obsolete and cannot be repaired. Our second unit is a Harben machine and, although it continues to 
operate like new, it is greater than 22 years old.  The quality of the Harben unit is unmatched and Jet-
Vac is a sole supplier.  In addition, parts continue to be made for the older Harben unit.  It is critical to 
have a second machine in case there is an emergency call while the other is in use.  A Harben Model DTK 
375 unit has been priced, and it will cost approximately $82,604. 

Replacement Sewer Pump 
On the recommendation of the Fleet Manager, Field Operations is in the process of replacing current 
Thompson pumps that are no longer reliable and are obsolete.  Parts for these pumps are no longer 
available or are very hard to get when a pump is down.  In addition, Thompson pumps are not Dri-Prime 
and cannot run on a float ball system.  This makes operation more difficult and they have to be run 
manually.  Godwin pumps that have been purchased and are currently in use have been very reliable 
and parts are readily available.  The quality and longevity of the pumps are outstanding.  The Godwin 
pumps are Dri-Prime pumps, and they are specifically designed to automatically prime after the pump 
shuts off. Therefore, the pump can run in manual or automatic with a float ball system.  The preliminary 
FY26 budget includes the purchase of a Godwin pump to replace an aged Thomspon pump.  Funds are 
available to purchase this pump in FY25, which means pricing will be locked in and not subject to 
increases.  Xylem is the sole supplier of the Godwin pump, and they have this pump in stock.  It is 
proposed to purchase a Godwin Model CD150S pump. The pump has been priced and will cost 
approximately $72,075. 

Highway 321 Booster Pump Station Pump 
The Highway 321 Booster Pump Station feeds our Gaston water tank.  The station operates on two 
pumps, which is required by the South Carolina Department of Environmental Services.  When one 
pump is down the station is in emergency status.  Lead times for repairs or replacements are two to six 
months.  The preliminary FY26 budget includes the purchase of a spare pump that will ensure we are 
prepared during emergencies.  Funds are available to purchase this pump in FY25, which means pricing 

ITEM IV. A. 



will be locked in and not subject to increases.  The booster station currently uses Aurora Model 421A 
pumps, which have been reliable.  It is proposed to purchase the same pump for the spare to provide 
continuity.  Mechanical Equipment Company is the sole supplier of the Aurora pump.  The pump has 
been priced and will cost approximately $49,655. 
 
Sole-Source 
City Council may waive the formal bid procedures as established by Ordinance when it is to the City’s 
advantage to sole source in certain situations. 
 

Sec. 2-144(9). – Procurements and contracts. 
City council may wave the informal and formal bid procedures when it is to the advantage of 
the city to acquire goods and/or services on a most convenient source basis or sole-source 
basis in situations of prolonged supply chain delays or on the basis of a previously awarded bid 
or contract, and for professional services when the person employed is customarily employed 
on a fee basis rather than by competitive bidding (such as, by way of example, for an appraiser, 
attorney or physician). 

(Code 1975, § 2-57) 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council waive the formal bid process and allow the purchase of a new Harben 
sewer jetter machine, Godwin sewer pump, and Aurora booster pump.  The total approximate cost 
(including tax) and the funding sources are as follows: 
 

Harben Sewer Jetter Machine - $82,604 from Utilities Wastewater Collection O&M 
Godwin Sewer Pump - $72,075 from Utilities Wastewater Collection O&M 
Aurora Booster Pump - $49,655 from Utilities Water Distribution O&M 



Page 1 of 3 

Cayce Historical Museum Commission 

March 5, 2025 

 Meeting Minutes 

The March 5, 2025 meeting of the Cayce Historical Museum Commission (CHMC) was held in the Cayce 
Visitors Center. The meeting was convened at 5:04pm by Chair James Stewart. The following individuals 
attended the meeting:  

Name Status 
James Stewart Chair 
Pamela Sulton Vice Chair 
Marcy Hayden Secretary 
Archie Moore Commissioner 
A.G. Dantzler Commissioner  (absent) (resigned) 
Charlita Earle Commissioner  (absent) 
Keith Stephenson Commissioner  (absent) 
David Brinkman Commissioner 
Will Britz Commissioner   (absent) 
Andy Thomas Cayce Museum Curator 
Mike Conley Deputy City Manager 
Wesley Crosby Assistant City Manager 
Elizabeth Lumsden Cayce Museum Assistant 

Upcoming Events: 
3/22/25-Soiree on State Street 
4/5/25-Tartan Day South Colonial Village 
4/19/2025- REV250 Event at Old Mill in Lexington (Shot Heard ‘Round the World) 
5/2025-African American Legends of Cayce Event (TBA) 
6/2025-Juneteeth Event (TBA) 

Invocation: Vice Chair Sulton 

Action Items: 

February Meeting Minutes: 
The Commission reviewed the previous meeting minutes. Vice Chair Sulton made the motion 
that the meeting minutes be accepted and Commissioner Brinkman seconded the motion. The 
minutes were approved. 

ITEM V. A. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Donations 
 
Gift of Cayce Grammar School Photo (Jeannie Mack) and Early Phonographs(Eleanor Manken) 
 
Motion to accept donated items due to their significance and added value to current exhibits was 
made by Commissioner Moore and seconded by Commissioner Hayden. Motion passed.    
 
Museum Staff Report 
 
Museum staff and volunteers are making progress on the NAGPRA inventory having recorded 
around 6,074 objects to date. The NAGPRA report work continues until all Native American 
Indian items are cataloged. Additionally, volunteers are working on archival items in the storage 
building to catalog and organize items in the collection.  
 
The Columbia Airport Exhibit display is at the printer. The exhibit does not have an opening 
date, but should be announced soon.  
 
The Battle of Congaree Creek Anniversary took place at the Museum on Feb. 15th from 
9am-3pm and featured an encampment with Union and Confederates with about 8 attendees. 
There were also tours of the Battle of Congaree Creek at the 12,000 History Park at 9am and 
1pm on Feb. 15th that had approximately 9 attendees.  
 
Facebook Engagement: Ms. Lumsden provided an overview of Facebook post engagement from 
2024 vs. 2025 mainly highlighting African American Heritage Month history/Legends of Cayce 
posts with over 10,300 interactions and over 149,600 views from the 12 postings in 2025 which 
increased from 2024.  
 
Exhibits: Public Safety exhibit and REV250 exhibits are being worked on current.  The Public 
Safety building needs additional funding for ongoing electrical issues. Language for the REV250 
exhibit is currently being drafted by Commissioner Brinkman, Ms. Sue Kelly and Museum staff 
and exhibit is expected to open in 2026.  
 
Budget Requests: Staff is currently working on Budget requests for 2025-26 which will include 
the two exhibits, electrical issues, and public restrooms (outdoors).  
 
Upcoming Events: March 22nd will be the Soiree on State Street event and the Museum will 
have a table.  Tartan Day South-Colonial Village will be April 5th. The Museum staff will have 
tables at both events and have asked Commissioners to volunteer if available. April 19th 
REV250 Event Committee hosting “Shot Heard ‘Round the World” Event at the Old Mill in 
Lexington, SC. Future events will include weaving  and crocheting class, archeology day, artifact 
identification and Juneteeth event. Dates are TBA.  
 
 
 
Ongoing Business:  
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

By-Law Committee: 
 
Proposed update to by-laws to change the “Ad Hoc” African American Committee to a 
“Standing Committee” under the Commission. Mr. Thomas will provide the original ad-hoc 
committee description to the Commissions for review and changes. A vote will take place to 
approve the amendment before sending the updates to the City Council for approval.  
 
Strategic Planning-Historic Preservation 
 
Cayce Historical Locations Document and App.: Commissioners were reminded to document a 
few locations for the test before the next meeting.  
 
Threewitts House: As part of ongoing preservation efforts, locations are being identified around 
the Cayce area that are “endangered.” Chair Stewart, Commissioner Moore and others visited the 
Threwitz House located on the property of Copart. This home is from the 1760-1825 and is a 
great example of timber frame building with original hand-made bricks still on site although the 
chimneys have now fallen. This home is connected in Cayce History, being the 3rd oldest home 
in Lexington County. The house could possibly be preserved onsite or moved to the Cayce 
Museum. Commissioner Moore and Chair Stewart will be researching this possibility further.  
 
Cayce Historic Foundation:  
 
The Cayce Historic Foundation is officially 501c3 certified which will help with fundraising 
efforts for the Museum and historic preservation.  

Old State Road NRHP Nomination 
 
No updates at this time. 
 
New Business: 
 
No updates at this time.  
 
Additional Business:  
 
No updates at this time.  
 
 
With no other business on the meeting agenda and a motion to adjourn was made by 
Commissioner Moore and seconded by Commissioner Brinkman. The meeting adjourned at 
5:55PM. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

May 6, 2025 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

ACCOMMODATION TAX COMMITTEE 
Ms. Sophia Chen recently resigned from the Accommodation Tax Committee.  This position must 
be filled by someone in the restaurant industry in Cayce.  The City has received a potential member 
application from Ms. Ashley Lambert, the Marketing Director for Steel Hands.  Her application is 
attached for Council’s review.   

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION 
Ms. Christy Corley, Ms. Barbara Lawson, Ms. Forrest Ryan and Mr. Ross Shealy’s positions expire 
on the Beautification Foundation in May.  All attend meetings regularly and would like to serve 
again.  Their reappointment applications are attached for Council’s review.    

EVENTS COMMITTEE 
Ms. Jean Boiteau’s position on the Events Committee expires in May, she is currently serving an 
unexpired term and would like to serve again.  Ms. Boiteau regularly attends meetings.  Her 
reappointment application is attached for Council’s review. 

MUSEUM COMMISSION 
Ms. Pamela Sulton’s position on the Museum Commission expires in May and she would like to 
serve again.  Ms. Sulton regularly attends meetings and is also a member of the Museum’s African 
American sub-committee.  Her reappointment application is attached for Council’s review.    

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED  
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member applications.  

   EVENTS COMMITTEE – FOUR (4) POSITIONS 
This committee is actively involved in working with City staff to plan and coordinate City events and 
works the events with staff. 

APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

Cayce citizens have an opportunity to actively participate in the City through their services on a 
number of advisory boards, commissions, foundations and committees. These groups help shape 
and carry out policy. 

Applications are accepted at any time for all City of Cayce boards, commissions, foundations and 
committees.  Cayce citizens wishing to apply for appointment may submit a potential member 
application to the Municipal Clerk, P. O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171. More information and a copy 
of the application can be found on our website at caycesc.gov or by calling City Hall at 803-796-
9020. 

City Council considers received applications at a meeting immediately following an opening. 

ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 



ITEM V. B. 


	Agenda
	Item I. B. - April 1, 2025, Budget Work Session Minutes
	Item I. B. - April 1, 2025, Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item I. B. - April 16, 2025, Regular Council Meeting, Budget Work Session Minutes
	Item III. A. - White Paper Adopting Proclamations and Resolutions
	Item III. A - Ordinance Adopting Proclamations and Resolutions
	Item III. B. - Resolution Municipal Clerk Week
	Item III. C. - White Paper Property inclusion into MCIP
	Item III. C. - Resolution Including Property into Joint County Industrial Park
	Item IV. A. - White Paper Utilities Capital Requests
	Item V. A - Museum Commission Meeting Minutes 030525
	Item V. B. - Appts and Reappts Report
	Item V. B. - Lambert Potential Member Application
	Item V. B. - Corley Reappointment Application
	Item V. B. - Lawson Reappointment Application
	Item V. B. - Ryan Reappointment Application
	Item V. B. - Shealy Reappointment Application
	Item V. B. - Boiteau Reappointment Application
	Item V. B. - Sulton Reappointment Application

